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7 Chestnut Street 

Built for 

DEACON JOHN STONE, distiller 

c. 1827 

Research by, 
Joyce King 
Sept. 1984 

"ta p•esen.•e Hi>toric Sites. 8ui!dings '"td cbiect;, 
and to work ,'or thc1 education of tire ,·ommumty 
in tlte true palue of tlze ;.lme." 



7 Chestnut Street 

The land on which this house stands was owned by the Neal family 

from the 1650's .to 1825. 

Jonatha:n Neale. 
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Book 238 page 247 
Oct. 11, 1825 
$6,000 

Jonathan Neal sold three parcels 
of land to John Stone. One of the 
three being a large lot on the corner 
of Chestnut and Summer Streets. The 
buildings on this land were reserved 
to there respective owners and a 

reasonable time given to remove them • 

(see appendix A) 
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Deacon Stone built the house 5-7 Chestnut St., as an investment of 

his children's trust fund, after the old houses were removed and 

the boggy field filled in. Unfortunately, the exact date of con­
struction can not be documented at this time. Since tradition has 

dates spanning 1826-1828, the date c. 1827 seems appropriate. 

The property was advertised for sale in the Salem Gazette in March 

1839: 
"That valuable square, extending from the Assemblay Ha1·1 to Summer 

street with the buildings thereon, viz a block of 2 wooden dwelling 
house's #5 & 7 Chestnut street, with the out buildings belonging 

to them, and the land under and adjoining the same. These houses 
are in fine condition, very convenient, finished throughout in modern 

style, have foldingdoors, marble chimney pieces, grates for coal, 
& soapstone fireplaces, and are now occupied by Messrs J.E. Sprague 

and S.R. Hodges. 
Also the block of two wooden dwelling houses #36 and 37 (?) Summer 

street, with the out houses belonging to them, and the land under and 

adjoining the same. 
The buildings are in excellent condition, very convenient and 

finished throughout. Terms liberal, and made known at the sale, 
which will be positive. 

These estates may be examined at any time previous to the sale, 
on application to John Stone. 

Newhall auctioneer 
Also that valuable lot of land adjoining above, being one of the 

best building lots in the city - it is bom1d 72 feet on Chestnut 
and 90 feet on Summ\er street." 

Book 313 page 159 
April 9, 1839 

$2, 905 

John H. Stone, Lucy P. Stone and 
Henry O. Stone, children of John 

Stone sold the west half of the 

dwelling house (7 Chestnut StJ to 

George ·cleaveland. 
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This transaction was also recorded in the account book of Jonathan 

Tucker: 
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Book 321 page 46 
Oct. 13, 1840 
$3,400 

Book 344 page 159 
May 8,· 1844 
$3,400 

Book 389 page 66 
Oct. 21, 1847 
$4,000 

Book 419 page 96 
Oct. 2, 1849 
1i4,300 

Book 570 page 284 
May 15, 1858 

George w. Cleaveland, administrator 
of the estate of George Cleaveland, 
mariner, sold the dwelling house and 
land to Nathaniel West. 

Nathaniel West sold the land and 
dwelling house to Sarah E. LeMaster. 
"I purchased of the administrator of 
George Cleaveland deceased." 

Sarah E. LeMaster, of Salem, single, 
sold the dwelling house and land to 
Asahel Huntington Esq. "Described 

in deed Nathaniel West to me May 8, 

1844·" 

Asahel-Huntington Esq. sold the 
dwelling house 7 Chestnut St. to 

Harriet Rose, widow. "Described in 
deed Nathaniel West to Sarah E. 
Le Master May 3, 1844. 11 "Also same 
estate conveyed to me by Le Master." 

Harriet Rose, of Salem, widow sold 
the land and dwelling house to 
Francis Boardman. "The whole of the 

estate conveyed to me by Asahel 
Huntington Oct. 2, 1849." 



Book 646 page 26 
Dec. 31, 1862 
Love and affection 
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Book 1195 page 42 

April 19, 1887 
$1 

-

Francis Boardmap conveyed the property 
t~ his daughter {Mary H. Phillips, 
wife of Willard •. "The whole of the 

estate conveyed to me by Harriet Rose 
on May 15, 1853·" 

Mary H. Phillips had acquired a 

small parcel adjoining this property 
from Catherine A. Taylor and Edward 
Morse on Sept. 20, 1858 for the sum 
of $300. 
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Willard P. Phillips of North Andover, 
and Mary H. wife of Willard in her 

own right, sold to Edward H. Dewson of 
Quincy, Joseph s. Williams and 
Jeremiah Williams of Boston, trustees 
under the will of Jeremiah Williams 

late of Boston, the land and dwelling 
house and all other buildings. The 
said lot being described in two deeds 



Book 1195 page 42 (cont.) 

Book 2742 page 362 
Oct. 19, 1927 

Book 3687 page 217 
August 31, 1949 

one from Francis Boardman to Mary H. 
Phillips book 646 page 26 and from 
C.A. Taylor et al to Mary H. Phillips 

book 577 page 118. 

Naumkeag Trust Co., trustee under 
the will of Jeremiah Williams late of 
Boston, for benefit of Elizabeth E. 
Coggin of Salem. He died in Salem 

Oct. 4, 1927. By power of will and 

for purpose of terminating said trust 
for benefit of Elizabeth by transfer 
and conveyance of the trus.t estate 
to those persons entitled thereto 

under said will and for consideration 
of $1 to Elizabeth w. Coggin, spinster 
of Salem, Margaret c. Wellington wife 
of Raynor G. of Vermillion, s. Dakota 
and Katherine Wiswall wife of Richard, 
the dwelling house and land. "The 
same premises described in deed from 
Willard P. Phillips and Mary H. 
Phillips." 

Elizabeth w. Coggin, of Salem; Raynor 
G. Wellington and Margaret his wife 

in her own right and Richard H. Wiswall 
and Katherine his wife sold to 
Elinor G. Ives wife of Oscar J.,of 
Marblehead, the land and dwelling house 
7 & ?t Chestnut st. "The same premises 

described in a deed from Naumkeag 
Trust Co. Oct. 19, 1927." 



Book 6331 page 51 
March 10, 1977 
$52,000 

Book 6628 page 107 
August 3~ 1979 
$93,000 

Book ?123 page 425 
June 1, 1983 
$155,000 

David o. Ives conservatol" of Elj_nor 
Ives #331456, sold the property to 
Dav~d and Alice Johnson. For the 
ward's title see deed Elizabeth w. 
Coggin et al to Elinor G. Ives on 
August 31, 1949. 

Daivd w. and Alice v. Johnson sold 
the land and buildings to Sylvia F. 
Vaughan and Mary L. Vaughan. "For 
title see deed of David Ives conser­
vator of the property of Elinor G. 
Ives July 19, 1977." 

Sylvia F. Vaughan and Mary L. Vaughan 
sold the land and buildings 7 & 7t 
Chestnut St. to Joyce Cook. "For 
title see deed David W. and Alice V. 
Johnson August 31, 1979•" 



Notes: The Essex Institute has in its Photo Collection several 

views of 5-7 Chestnut st. Negative #65, #749, #5116 & #5266. 

Deacon John Stone was born July 9, 1781 at Reading, Mass., the son 
of Eliab and Sarah (Hubbard) Stone. He was brought up to business 

in the importing house of Saxton and Wainright of Boston, dealers in 
crockery and glassware. After serving a regular apprenticeship he 
established a business in Salem in May of 1803. He married Catherine 
Dodge on November 9, 1806, who died March 24, 1818. On May 2, 1819, 
he married Mary Hodges. He was a Deacon of :th~ First Church, an ensign 

of the Salem Cadets and captain in the Massachusetts Militia. 

(Essex Lodge, A.F. & A.M., page 98) 

Reference to book and page are deed books at the Registry of Deeds. 
Probate numbers are cases at Probate Court. Both offices are located 

. in the same building on Federal St. All maps in this report are 
not meant to be exact, just for illustration purposes. 
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204 NOTES ON THE BUILDING OF CHESTNUT STREET 

it may present a reasonably truthful picture of the develop­
ment of the street and the houses upon it and to some 
extent may serve as a useful record. 

The lower end of Chestnut Street, between Cambridge 
Street and Summer Street, is somewhat older than the 
upper part. The street began as a lane running from 
Summer Street to another lane which is now Cambridge 
Street and which ran through from Essex to ·what is now 
Broad Street where was the Burying Hill. There were 
some shops and houses on wha.t is now Cambridge Street 
from the corner of Essex Street to the old Assembl_y House 
which stood on Cambridge Street just north of the present 
Church propert.y. This old Assembly House had been 
built in 1766 and in 177 4 it was bought for use as a 
church, altered, and was occupied b_y the congregation 
which in 1804 built the South Church on the corner of 
Cambridge Street. and Chestnut Street.. That part of 
Cambridge Street was then called Assembly Court, until 
it was absorhed into wha,t i8 now Cambridge Street which 
was laid out in 1794 through to Broad Street. These 
Janes from Summer Street running west and from Essex 
Street running 8outh were doubtless used for access to the 
old Asscmhl_y House and the church which occupied it, 
and to the Burial Ground on Broad Street. Chestnut 
Street along the present line of the street from Summer 
to Flint Street was laid out by the town as a forty-foot 
street on October 26, 1796 through land belonging to fif­
teen families. John Pickering, who lived in the present 
l'ickering house and who owned land abutting the new 
street on the south, offered to give land to provide forty 
feet more width to the new street, and Pickering Dodge, 
for $400 paid b_y the town, guaranteed to satisfy all other 
O\vners of land required to provide additional width. The 
final laying out of the new street of a width of eighty feet 
wa,s completed on December 10, 1804. On the same date 
Pickering Street was laid out over land of .T ohn Pickering. 
Hamilton Street had been laid out in 1803. The land 
over which the street ran consisted of fields with apple 
trees scatt.crcd about, and, to the south, was owned by 
.T ohn Pickering and otlicr owners. To the north, proper-
ties owned b_y residents of Essex Street streoohed back : . 
toward the present location of the street. : 
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BY . RICHARD HALL WISWALL 205 

At about 1800 there were a fow bnildings already on 
"\vhat is now lower Chestnut Street below Cambridge. Be­
ginning at Summer Street and going up the north side 
there was, at the beginning of the centur_y, on the corner · 
a one-story house with a large front window displa_ying 
gingerbread, confectionaries and molasses candy made by 
the occupant Mrs. Dowst. Next west, where No. 6 Chest­
nut Street now stands, was a two-story "superior" house 
occupied by Joseph ]\folutire, a wood carver and a nephew 
of Samuel Mcintire, and west of that (after 1805) was 
the original No. 8 Chestnut Street, a one-story brick 
building occupied b_y one David Ashby who was the sex­
to!l of the South Church and who also was digger of cel­
lars and slaughterer of hogs. Where the present church. 
is was originally a brick yard. .Joseph ~lclntire, who 
lived in the wooden house, had a shop in .front. He was 
a bachelor, "a quiet mysterious man with an air of mys­
tery hanging about his life." Although Mr. Lee appar­
ently thought that he was the famous .Mcintire who 
designed the South Church, this is certainly not the case. 
The famous Mcintire died in 1811 and this :Mcintire 
was living at No. 6 Chestnut Street until 1851. He was, 
moreover, a bachelor and the architect was married and 
had a son. He lived in the house with his sister Nancy, 
Mrs. Jonathan Glover, and her son. 

On the south side of the street, beginning at the corner 
of Summer, were three small unpainted houses. On the 
corner of Summer was Aiken's Bakery, a one-stor_y wooden 
building with a pitched roof with its end on Summer 
Street, painted red and the side unpainted on Chestnut 
Street. On the immediate corner was a well and wcll­
sweep. Next above was a two-story pitched roof house 
belonging to Brackley Peabody with its end to the strcrt, 
which was later moved off when Deacon Stone bought 
this property. In the basement of this house was a black­
smith shop, and the 'house was always referred to as a 
black house with a bull's eye window. Then came a boggy 
field where the aqueduct company stored logs under water 
and which was probably owned by Mr. Bott, the father of 
the Bott who built 18 Chestnut Street. Then came a 
small house occupied by llfoses Smith, generally known 

Essex ·Institute Historic 
Collections Vol. 75 ~
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